
The Ministry of Aliyah and Integration

אנחנו כאן, כדי שתרגישו בבית

We’re Here So That You’ll Feel at Home
All the Information You Need for An Easy Integration

Welcome Home
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Dear New Immigrants, we know that it’s not easy 
to begin a new life,

That’s the Reason that We are Here!
The Ministry of Aliyah and Integration is responsible for the assistance 
given by the State of Israel to new immigrants* and returning residents, 
from the first organizational stage until your absorption and integration 
into all spheres of life in Israeli society.

This brochure concentrates all the information that you need, prior to 
arrival in Israel and during your initial days in the country, in order for you 
to benefit from all the services you are entitled to.

*Those who are recognized as new immigrants, immigrant citizens, returning minors, and 
returning residents.

Welcome!
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Boarding the Plane?
Make Sure You Have These Documents With You 
and Not in Your Luggage:
· Passport with new-immigrant visa
· Original birth certificate-note: if the personal details in your birth 

certificate are different than those listed in the passport, it is necessary 
to have an “apostil” stamp* on the birth certificate 

· Marriage certificate with an “apostil“ stamp*
· Documents that testify to Jewish status
· Authorization of divorce (with an “apostil“ stamp* where applicable)
· Death certificate of spouse (with an “apostil“ stamp* where 

applicable)
· Authorization of guardianship for children over the age of 18 who 

have special needs and require guardianship.
· Letter from aliyah shaliach - where applicable 
· Any other documents that can verify your situation and you believe 

are relevant

*Certain countries do not have an apostil agreement, therefore check with a shaliach 
about alternatives.
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Upon Arrival at Ben Gurion Airport, You Will Find the Following 
Services:
Individual Guidance- before passport control a representative of the 
Ministry of Aliyah and Integration will meet you in order to guide you 
through the process. In the event that a representative does not meet 
you, go to the Passport Control area, Border Control, or the Information 
Desk at the luggage claim area, and you can receive assistance in 
locating the Ministry representative.

Light refreshments, a nurse, a mother-and–baby room, and 
telephone calls within Israel – within the Ministry area.

New Documents- the Ministry will issue a te’udat oleh or te’udat 
zeka’ut for the family (single children up to the age of 21 are listed in 
the family te’udat oleh), a temporary te’udat zehut or Authorization of 
Registration in the Population Registry; authorization of registration 
for a Health Fund, and a form for opening a bank account.

Absorption Basket- this is a subsistence allowance for the first 6 
months in the country. The assistance is in 7 payments.

Persons eligible for the Absorption Basket receive the first installment 
in cash. 
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Payment 
Number Couple

Single- 
Parent
Family

Single

Couple 
Before 
Retire-
ment
Age

Single 
Parent 
Before 
Retire-
ment 
Age

Single 
Before 
Retire-
ment 
Age

Retired 
Couple

Retired 
Single 
Parent

Retired 
Single

Child 
Age 
0-4

Child 
Age 
4-18

Child 
Age 

18-21

Supple-
ment for 

Family 
of 6 or 
More

Cash at Airport 2.500 2.300 1.250 2.500 2.300 1.250 2.500 2.300 1.250 250 250 250 0

Bank Transfer 3.810 1.460 1.431 3.641 1.491 1.440 3.598 1.454 2.186 3.024 2.995 3.034 0

1st payment 4.810 4.344 2.628 6.189 5.207 3.348 3.840 3.355 2.656 1.273 667 1.054 839

2nd payment 4.810 4.344 2.628 6.189 5.207 3.348 3.840 3.355 2.656 1.273 667 1.054 839

3rd payment 4.810 4.344 2.628 6.189 5.207 3.348 3.840 3.355 2.656 1.273 667 1.054 839

4th payment 4.810 4.344 2.628 6.189 5.207 3.348 3.840 3.355 2.656 1.273 667 1.054 839

5th payment 4.810 4.344 2.628 6.189 5.207 3.348 3.840 3.355 2.656 1.273 667 1.054 839

6th payment 4.810 29.824 2.628 6.189 5.207 3.348 3.840 3.355 2.656 1.273 667  1.054  839  

Total payments 35.170 29.824 18.449 43.275 35.033 22.778 29.138  23.884 19.372 10.912  7.247   9.608 5.034
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Health Insurance and Health Fund - new immigrants are eligible for health insurance from the date 
of receipt of new-immigrant status. In order to receive health services, it is necessary to register in 
one of the health funds. You can register for the health fund of your choice at the airport at no cost, 
or at one of the branches of the Postal Bank located throughout the country (for a symbolic fee and 
in the presence of both spouses). After 3 weeks from receipt of new-immigrant status, registration is 
also through the website of the National Insurance Institute, free of charge.
We recommend that you decide the health fund you wish to join before your aliyah. Note that 
you must register within 90 days of your date of aliyah. Following this period, registration is 
through a branch office of the National Insurance Institute. 
Your Baggage - at the conclusion of all procedures, you can collect your luggage, 
accompanied by a representative of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration.
Free Transport from the Airport - you are eligible for one-time free transport from the 
airport, along with your luggage, to the destination of your choice. Note: if the destination is 
Eilat or environs, and you wish to arrive by air, please notify the Ministry at least two weeks 
in advance of your aliyah.

Your First Home in Israel
During your first days, you have the option of staying with friends or relatives, or in an 
apartment you have rented or purchased in advance. If you wish to participate in a Jewish 
Agency absorption program, such as an absorption center, Bayit Rishon BeMoledet, or 
similar program, you must arrange this with the Jewish Agency prior to aliyah.

Whom to consult? 
The nearest office of the Jewish Agency where you live, or the Global Center: 
http://www.jewishagency.org/Global_Center
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What Activities are Necessary During the First 
Days in Israel?
Opening a Bank Account- You must open a bank account, and it 
is recommended to do so as soon as possible, in order to deposit 
assistance funds and to receive allowances from the National 
Insurance Institute. Both spouses must be present when opening a 
bank account. 
Note that many banks require an income-tax file number when 
opening a bank account. In the United States: SSN, in Russia: INN, in 
the rest of the world: TIN (Tax Indentification Number).
In order to open a bank account you must bring your te’udat oleh. If 
one spouse is unable to come to the bank when opening the account, 
it is necessary to bring a notarized power-of-attorney. 
Note that you must make a one-time deposit of at least one shekel 
in order for the bank account to become active and to enable the 
Ministry to transfer financial assistance without difficulty. 
You must also return to the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration and 
bring the form with the details of your bank account, signed by the 
bank, in order to receive financial assistance into the account.
Whom to consult?
Your choice of commercial banks throughout the country. It is 
recommended to visit a bank branch close to your place of residence.
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Consultation at the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration – we will be 
happy to welcome you at our offices in order to provide you with the 
information that you need about the Absorption Basket or assured 
income, rental subsidies, educational options for your children, 
information about Hebrew ulpan study, and other forms of Ministry 
assistance.
In order to transfer assistance payments to which you are entitled 
from the Ministry, please supply the personal absorption counselor 
with verification of opening a bank account, as well as deposit of any 
sum that verifies that the account is active.
Registration for Hebrew Study- knowledge of Hebrew is essential 
for successful absorption, and it is worthwhile to study the language 
during the first months following aliyah. It is important to note that 
the period of eligibility for ulpan study is within 18 months from the 
date of aliyah. More information is on page 10 of this brochure.
Whom to consult? 
Personal absorption counselors. A list of the bureaus nearest to 
you appears in this brochure.
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Requesting a te’udat zehut and Israeli passport- Upon arrival at Ben Gurion airport it is likely that you 
received a temporary te’udat zehut, valid for 3 months, from a representative of the Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration who is authorized by the Population and Immigration Authority. If you do not receive a temporary 
te’udat zehut from the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration at the airport, you receive an Authorization of 
Registration in the Population Registry, which you can bring to an office of the Population and Immigration 
Authority in order to receive a permanent te’udat zehut (Israel issues biometric identity cards. See below).  
Biometric documents- Israel now issues biometric documents. There are two types of biometric documents: 
te’udat zehut and travel documents (passport or te’udat ma’avar [ temporary transit document]). Residents who 
visit the Population Authority in order to receive a te’udat zehut, passport, or te’udat ma’avar receive biometric 
documents.
In order to receive a passport or permanent te’udat zehut, it is necessary to apply at a branch office of the 
Population Authority (it is recommended to make an appointment in advance), complete the forms and pay 
the fee. Bring the temporary te’udat zehut issued at the airport. The passport and/or biometric te’udat zehut 
is sent by mail within 3 weeks. You must have the following documents: te’udat oleh, birth certificate, marriage 
certificate, certificate of divorce or death of spouse when applicable. It is possible that you will also need to 
present your apartment rental contract. 
Whom to consult?
The Population and Immigration Authority: www.piba.gov.il *3450
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Converting a Foreign Driver’s License to an Israeli license- new immigrants may drive with a valid foreign in 
Israel for up to one year from the date of aliyah, using a vehicle suited to the level of the license, and on condition 
that they reach the age requirement for a license. Following that one-year period, in order to continue driving, it 
is necessary to convert the foreign license to an Israeli one within 3 years from the date of aliyah, on condition 
that the foreign license was issued prior to receipt of new-immigrant status and entry into Israel. 
1. New immigrants who have a foreign driver’s license and less than 5 years have passed since the license 

was issued are required to undergo the practical driving exam (control) but are exempt from medical and eye 
examinations. 

2. New immigrants who have a foreign license and five or more years have passed since the license was 
issued- are permitted to receive an Israeli license immediately, without the requirement of a driving exam 
or medical/eye examinations (with the exception of applicants over the age of 70, who are not exempt from 
medical and eye examinations). In all situations, drivers who require glasses or lenses must wear them, or 
who have any medical problem that could affect their driving ability, must report such issues to the Licensing 
Authority. 

Note: Licensing bureau regulations require that a notary in Israel translate foreign licenses, with the exception 
of licenses from English- or Arabic-speaking countries.

Whom to consult?
For more information about converting a driver’s license, consult the Ministry of Transportation National 
Information Line, *5678, or The Licensing Bureau website: rishuy.mot.gov.il
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Assured Income
A new immigrant or family can be eligible for assured-income assistance from the 
Ministry of Aliyah and Integration at the conclusion of Absorption Basket payments if 
they meet conditions of eligibility.  Similarly, a single new immigrant or a family can be 
eligible to recieve assured income from the Ministry even if they are not eligible for the 
Absorption Basket acording to Absortion-Basket regulations.  Details and conditions of 
eligibility are available during the first meeting with a personal absorption counselor.

Allowances from the National Insurance Institute
Child Allowances Once you have supplied your bank account details to a personal 
absorption counselor, the information is transmitted to the National Insurance Institute 
in order for you to automatically a receive a child allowance into your bank account. If 
you do not receive the allowance, consult the National Insurance Institute immediately.
Old-Age Pension For details about old-age pensions, consult with the National 
Insurance Institute. In order to investigate eligibility, bring the following documents: 
te’udat zehut or Authorization of Registration in the Population Registry, te’udat oleh, 
and documents that attest to financial status.

Whom to Consult?
The National Insurance Institute *6050 www.btl.gov.il
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Services, Information, and Assistance During Your First Year of Aliyah

Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Te’udat Zehut Upon making aliyah, the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration issues 
you a temporary te’udat zehut (identity card) or Authorization of 
Registration in the Population Registry at Ben-Gurion Airport. For 
a permanent te’udat zehut, apply to the nearest branch of the 
Population and Immigration Authority.

 The Population and 
Immigration Authority

www.piba.gov.il
*3450

Te’udat oleh A te’udat oleh (immigrant’s certificate) is issued at Ben-Gurion 
Airport or the nearest branch office of the Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration to persons who wish to change their status in Israel 
following receipt of new-immigrant status from the Population and 
Immigration Authority.

Personal absorption 
counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration 
www.klita.gov.il

Te’udat Zaka’ut A te’udat zaka’ut is granted to persons who are determined to be 
eligible as new immigrants. It is issued at Ben Gurion airport or one 
of the offices of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration following 
investigation of eligibility.

Personal absorption 
counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration 
www.klita.gov.il

Opening a bank 
account

In order to receive financial assistance from various bodies, it is 
necessary to open a bank account at your choice of one of Israel’s 
commercial banks.

Commercial banks

Financial 
assistance- the 
Absorption Basket

Upon making aliyah, the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration provides 
an “Absorption Basket,” financial assistance for the first half-year. 
The Basket is in 7 payments.

Personal absorption 
counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration 
www.klita.gov.il
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Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Health insurance 
and registering for 
a health fund

The National Health Insurance Law mandates that during the first half 
year of your aliyah* you are entitled to health insurance beginning 
from date of receipt of new-immigrant status or eligibility as a new 
immigrant. Registration for a health fund is at Ben-Gurion Airport or a 
Post Office branch, or the website of the National Insurance Institute.
Registration for persons who are recognized as a returning minor 
or immigrant citizen is through a service location of the Ministry of 
Aliyah and Integration, and is transferred to the National Insurance 
Institute via the data network interface.
*During the second half of the first year, on condition that you are 
not employed, you can be entitled to an exemption from paying 
health insurance premiums to the National Insurance Institute. To 
actualize this benefit, you must apply to the nearest branch office of 
the National Insurance Institute.

Ben-Gurion Airport or Post 
Office branch
www.israelpost.co.il
171

The National Insurance 
Institute 
www.btl.gov.il
*6050

Hebrew-language 
ulpan

You are entitled to assistance for tuition fees for Hebrew-language 
study in an ulpan for five months of study. The period of eligibility is 
18 months from the date of aliyah.
In addition to the Ministry of Education ulpan-study track throughout 
the country, the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration operates the 
“Voucher Program,” which participates in the costs of Hebrew-
language study courses in private frameworks. New immigrants can 
use their eligibility to study Hebrew in the two frameworks- both in the 
Ministry of Education ulpan programs, and with the vouchers for study 
in a private framework according to their needs. More information is 
available from personal absorption counselors.

Personal absorption 
counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration 
www.klita.gov.il
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Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Registering 
children in 
educational 
frameworks- 
daycare/
kindergarten/
school

Registration of children ages 0-3 in public daycare frameworks is 
through the Ministry of Labor, Social Services and Social Affairs. 
Registration of children for pre-compulsory kindergarten (ages 3-4) 
and for kindergarten (ages 5-6), as well as for primary school and 
junior high school is through the education department of the local 
authority. Registration for high school is through the school.

Ministry of Labor, Social 
Services and Social Affairs-
Daycare Division
www.molsa.gov.il

Local Authorities

Assured income Following the cessation of Absorption Basket payments, during the 
first year, you can be eligible for assured income payments from the 
Ministry of Aliyah and Integration. To check your eligibility and to 
receive assistance, consult with a personal absorption counselor.

Personal absorption 
counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration 
www.klita.gov.il

Concessions on 
Customs and VAT

New immigrants and persons considered as immigrants
can be eligible for Customs concessions on importation of personal 
items, household goods, hand-held work tools, an automobile 
(partial exemption), and other items. Similarly, new immigrants 
can be eligible for an exemption on VAT when purchasing an 
air conditioner made in Israel only. More information, such as 
importation details, period of eligibility, etc. are available from 
offices of the Tax Authority and the Customs Authority throughout 
the country, as well as the Customs Authority website. 

The Customs Authority

www.taxes.gov.il

Allowances from 
the National 
Insurance Institute

Check your eligibility for allowances from the National Insurance 
Institute. 

The National Insurance 
Institute 
www.btl.gov.il
*6050
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Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Converting a 
driver’s license

New immigrants are permitted to drive in Israel using a valid 
overseas license for one year following the date of entry into the 
country. The vehicle must be appropriate to the level of the license. 
New immigrants may also convert their foreign license to an Israeli 
license. For information, consult the Ministry of Transport National 
Information Line or the Ministry website. 

The Ministry of 
Transportation and Road 
Safety National Information 
Line
*5678
The Licensing Authority
rishuy.mot.gov.il

Housing Housing assistance to eligible new immigrants is in the form of 
participation in rental assistance or public housing for those eligible. 
Rental assistance for new immigrants who receive the Absorption 
Basket is included in the Basket. From the 8th month of the 1st year, 
assistance is from the Ministry of Construction and Housing. To 
check eligibility for housing assistance, consult with a personal 
absorption counselor.

Personal absorption 
counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration 
www.klita.gov.il

Discount on 
property taxes

New immigrants and immigrant citizens can be eligible for a 
discount of up to 90% on property taxes during one year of the first 
two years following aliyah (depending on the regulations of the local 
authority, and the dimensions of the apartment). This discount is 
not given to returning minors. To receive a discount, consult with 
the Collections Department of the local authority.

Local authorities



16  |  All the Information You Need for Easy Absorption

Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Employment Personal absorption counselors will assist you to devise an 
individualized vocational plan, that includes assistance granted by 
the Ministry for vocational integration in Israel, such as participation 
in the costs of a professional training course (Voucher Program), 
preparatory course for professional licensing exams, vocational 
ulpan for those eligible, promoting placement in employment 
including assistance in funding salaries during the first months of 
employment, help in finding work, and more.

Employment counselors at 
the Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration 
www.klita.gov.il

Professional 
Licensing 

New immigrants who have a regulated profession (profession that 
requires licensing in Israel), who wish to practice their profession in 
Israel, must undergo licensing procedures in Israel according to law 
and the regulations of the corresponding licensing body. 

Personal absorption 
counselors
the Ministry of Aliyah and
Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Income Tax 
Concessions

New immigrants, immigrant citizens, returning minors, and 
returning residents can be eligible for an exemption on income tax, 
and reporting on income derived from abroad, during the first ten 
years.

Income Tax Authority
www.taxes.gov.il

Students New-immigrant students who are accepted for studies at an 
institution of higher education, or post-high-school studies in 
Israel, can receive assistance from the Student Authority. The main 
assistance is coverage of tuition fees, according to Student Authority 
regulations. The period of eligibility – within 36 months from the date 
of receipt of new-immigrant status or eligibility as a new immigrant.

The Student Authority of 
the Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration 
www.klita.gov.il
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Subject Method of Implementation Where to Turn

Soldiers A new-immigrant soldier who is recognized by the IDF as a lone 
soldier or eligible for Family Payments can be eligible for a monthly 
grant from the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration, in addition to 
the salary and grant from the IDF, in accordance with conditions 
of eligibility and the period of eligibility. Similarly, new-immigrant 
soldiers recognized by the IDF as lone soldiers can be eligible for a 
monthly rental grant from the Ministry of Construction and Housing.

Personal Absorption 
Counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration
www.klita.gov.il

Ministry of Construction 
and Housing
www.moch.gov.il

Scientists The Center for Integration in Science provides participation in the 
cost of employing a scientist and aids the employer in the initial 
vocational absorption of the new-immigrant or returning-resident 
scientist in scientific or R&D employment. It also grants subsistence 
allowances to PhD students.

Personal absorption 
counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration 
www.klita.gov.il

Business 
entrepreneurs

The program for encouraging new-immigrant entrepreneurs is for 
supporting the development of small and medium-sized businesses. 
It includes assistance such as: mapping the requirements of the 
services to be offered by the business in general, and in the particular 
place in which it is to be opened, business models for establishing a 
new business or cultivating an existing one, assistance in preparing 
a business plan for funding or a start-up, loans with favorable 
conditions, advice and business mentoring in entrepreneurial topics 
and taxes for businesses, as well as professional enrichment meetings 
(workshops) in a range of areas.

Personal absorption 
counselors at the Ministry 
of Aliyah and Integration 
www.klita.gov.il
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Counselors for New Immigrants at the Local Authorities
In order to ease your absorption in your local community, counselors for new immigrants who speak your 
language are available to you at every local authority. They can assist you with everything you need during your 
initial absorption within the community. The Ministry of Aliyah and Integration supports the local authority in 
order for it to employ the counselor.
To check the details of the counselor in your community, consult the nearest Ministry of Aliyah and 
Integration district office, Telephone numbers of district offices appear in this booklet.
Similarly, the local authority can offer the following services: discount on municipal taxes (arnona), registration 
for daycare, kindergarten, and primary school, and assistance for persons with disabilities or severe medical 
situations. Be sure to have your te’udat zehut, te’udat oleh, rental contract, and up-to-date medical documents 
as needed whenever consulting with the local authority. 
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The staff and administration of the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration are at your service 
for anything that you need in order to assist you during your absorption. You are invited to 

consult us, and we are happy to assist you and provide you with details of counselors for new 
immigrants who speak your language in the area in which you live.

Telephone Information Center: 03-9733333/*2994
info@moia.gov.il | www.klita.gov.il

Haifa and Northern District 
(04) 8631111/6

Haifa and Krayot, 
1-599-500-922

Upper Galilee 
1-599-500-920 

Nof HaGalil VeHaAmakim
(Upper Nazareth)
1-599-500-903

Hadera 
1-599-500-904

Tel Aviv and Center 
(03) 5209112 

Tel Aviv 
1-599-500-901 

Holon- Rishon LeTzion 
1-599-500-910 

Netanya and the Sharon 
1-599-500-905

Petach Tikva and the Shfela 
1-599-500-907

Southern and Jerusalem District 
(08) 6261216 

Beer Sheva and Negev 
1599-500-921

Jerusalem and Judea 
1-599-500-923 

Ashdod and Ashkelon 
1-599-500-914



IT’S IMPORTANT TO STAY IN TOUCH
The Ministry of Aliyah and Integration offers you personal absorption counselors on an ongoing 
basis, who speak your language, who will devise with you an absorption plan, guide you and 
assist you with all of your needs.

Details on the website: www.klita.gov.il the Ministry of Aliyah and Integration 
In addition, our representatives are also at your service at nearby local bureaus.

Welcome Home
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